

fish are taken for personal use shall obtain a yearly charter boat license for each such vessel, and the fee for said license shall be fifty dollars per annum for residents and one hundred dollars per annum for nonresidents. "Charter boat" means any vessel from which persons may, for a fee, angle for food fish, and which delivers food fish taken from waters either within or without the territorial boundaries of the state of Washington into state ports.

No vessel shall be licensed as a charter boat and hold a commercial salmon fishing license or vessel delivery permit at one and the same time.

A vessel may be transferred from charter boat fishing to commercial salmon fishing or vice versa by depositing the appropriate license and vessel delivery permit at the nearest office of the department of fisheries, provided that RCW 75.28.014 has been complied with.

Nothing in this section shall be construed to mean that vessels not generally engaged in charter boat fishing, and under private lease or charter being operated by the lessee for the lessee's personal recreational enjoyment shall be included under the provisions of this act.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 2. Section 75.28.090, chapter 12, Laws of 1955 as amended by section 4, chapter 212, Laws of 1955 and RCW 75-.28.090 are each repealed.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 3. The effective date of this act shall be January 1, 1970.

Passed the Senate February 26, 1969  
 Passed the House March 11, 1969  
 Approved by the Governor March 24, 1969  
 Filed in office of Secretary of State March 24, 1969

CHAPTER 91  
 [Engrossed Senate Bill No. 292]  
 HIGHWAYS--LEASE, SALE, OF UNUSED LANDS

AN ACT Relating to highways; amending section 47.12.120, chapter 13, Laws of 1961 and RCW 47.12.120; amending section 47.12.070, chapter 13, Laws of 1961 and RCW 47.12.070; repealing section

47.54.010, chapter 13, Laws of 1961, as amended by section 33, chapter 145, Laws of 1967 ex. sess. and RCW 47.54.010; repealing section 47.54.020, chapter 13, Laws of 1961, as amended by section 34, chapter 145, Laws of 1967 ex. sess. and RCW 47.54-.020; and repealing sections 47.54.030 through 47.54.900, chapter 13, Laws of 1961 and RCW 47.54.030 through RCW 47.54-.900.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON:

Section 1. Section 47.12.120, chapter 13, Laws of 1961 and RCW 47.12.120 are each amended to read as follows:

The highway commission is authorized, subject to the provisions and requirements of zoning ordinances of political subdivisions of government, to rent or lease any lands, ~~((including))~~ improvements ~~((thereon))~~, or air space above or below any lands, including those used or to be used for both limited access and conventional highways which are held for ~~((state))~~ highway purposes ~~((and))~~ but are not presently needed ~~((therefor))~~, upon such terms and conditions as the highway commission may determine ~~((;-and-to-maintain-and-care-for such-property-in-order-to-secure-rent-therefrom))~~.

Sec. 2. Section 47.12.070, chapter 13, Laws of 1961 and RCW 47.12.070 are each amended to read as follows:

If the Washington state highway commission deems that any land is no longer required for state highway purposes and that it is in the public interest so to do, said highway commission may negotiate for the sale of the land to a city or county of the state. The state highway commission shall certify the agreement for the sale to the governor, with a description of the land and the terms of the sale, and the governor may execute and the secretary of the state shall attest the deed and deliver it to the grantee.

~~((If-the-state-highway-commission-deems-it-in-the-public-interest,-said-commission-may-on-application-therefor-issue-a-permit;-lease-or-license-to-any-city-or-county-of-the-state;-for-the-use-of-any state-highway-land;-upon-such-terms-and-conditions-as-the-state-high-~~

~~way-commission-may-prescribe,-but-not-longer-than-four-years-))~~

Any moneys received pursuant to the provisions of this section shall be deposited in the motor vehicle fund.

Sec. 3. Section 47.54.010, chapter 13, Laws of 1961, as amended by section 33, chapter 145, Laws of 1967 ex. sess. and RCW 47.54.010; section 47.54.020, chapter 13, Laws of 1961, as amended by section 34, chapter 145, Laws of 1967 ex. sess. and RCW 47.54.020; sections 47.54.030 through 47.54.900, chapter 13, Laws of 1961 and RCW 47.54.030 through RCW 47.54.900, are each repealed.

Sec. 4. The repeals contained in section 3 of this 1969 amendatory act shall not be construed to alter or to terminate any existing contracts which were made pursuant to such statutes, nor shall such repeals affect any existing rights acquired under the statutes repealed.

Passed the Senate February 27, 1969  
Passed the House March 11, 1969  
Approved by the Governor March 24, 1969  
Filed in office of Secretary of State March 24, 1969

CHAPTER 92  
[Engrossed Senate Bill No. 29]  
OBSCENITY

AN ACT Relating to crimes; and amending section 118, page 96, Laws of 1854, as last amended by section 1, chapter 146, Laws of 1961, and RCW 9.68.010.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON:

Section 1. Section 118, page 96, Laws of 1854, as last amended by section 1, chapter 146, Laws of 1961, and RCW 9.68.010 are each amended to read as follows:

Every person who--

(1) Having knowledge of the contents thereof shall exhibit, sell, distribute, display for sale or distribution, or having knowledge of the contents thereof shall have in his possession with the intent to sell or distribute any book, magazine, pamphlet, comic book, newspaper, writing, photograph, motion picture film, phonograph record, tape or wire recording, picture, drawing, figure, image, or any object